
Death Records and Death Certificates by State

Alabama County registration of death records began in 1881, with a few earlier deaths
recorded in probate court records. Pre-1908 county records may be accessible
through county clerks. Statewide registration began Jan. 1, 1908, with full compliance
by 1925. Death certificates beginning 1908 and are more than 25 years old may be
obtained through Alabama Public Health.

Alaska Alaska is divided into boroughs, rather than counties. There were no boroughs that
kept death records until 1913, when territory registration of deaths began. Death
records become public information after 50 years and are available through the
Alaska Department of Health and Social Services.

Arizona Arizona state law required the recording of death certificates beginning in July 1909.
The Bureau of Vital Records has a sampling of death records from 1877. Death
records become public after 50 years and are available through the Arizona
Department of Health Services, Bureau of Vital Records.

Arkansas Arkansas statewide registration of deaths began in 1914, but compliance rates were
not 100 percent until the 1940s. Some Little Rock and Fort Smith records from 1881
are also available from the state. Public access to death records is restricted to
eligible individuals. Records are available through the Arkansas Department of
Health’s Local Public Health Units.

California Some counties in California kept death records prior to 1905. Statewide registration
of deaths began in July 1905, with full compliance achieved by 1920. The California
Department of Public Health, Vital Records maintains the records.

Colorado Colorado became a state in 1876 and at that time a law was passed requiring
counties and towns to record deaths, but not all complied. Statewide registration of
deaths began in 1907, with full compliance achieved by 1920. The Colorado State
Archives has a searchable database of death records for Denver County (1905-1909)
and Kit Carson County (1893-1907). Death certificates issued after 1908 are
available through the Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment.

Connecticut Death records in Connecticut were kept by the towns from the beginning of each
town, starting as early as the 1600s. Statewide registration of deaths began in 1897,
with full compliance achieved by 1915. Towns continue to record deaths. A certified
copy of a death certificate can be obtained through the Connecticut State
Department of Public Health.

Delaware Some deaths were recorded by cities and counties as early as 1855. The keeping of
death records has been required by the state of Delaware since 1913. Delaware
death records older than 40 years are open to the public. Once a record is old
enough to become public it is transferred from the Office of Vital Statistics to the
Delaware Public Archives.
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https://www.alabamapublichealth.gov/vitalrecords/death-certificates.html
http://dhss.alaska.gov/default.htm?aspxerrorpath=/dph/VitalStats/Pages/data/Publications.aspx
https://www.azdhs.gov/licensing/vital-records/index.php
https://www.azdhs.gov/licensing/vital-records/index.php
https://www.healthy.arkansas.gov/programs-services/topics/order-death-records
https://www.healthy.arkansas.gov/programs-services/topics/order-death-records
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CHSI/Pages/Vital-Records-Obtaining-Certified-Copies-of-Death-Records.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CHSI/Pages/Vital-Records-Obtaining-Certified-Copies-of-Death-Records.aspx
https://archives.colorado.gov/collections/genealogy-vital-records/death-records
https://archives.colorado.gov/collections/genealogy-vital-records/death-records
https://cdphe.colorado.gov/vitalrecords
https://portal.ct.gov/DPH/Vital-Records/Death-Certificates
https://portal.ct.gov/DPH/Vital-Records/Death-Certificates
https://www.dhss.delaware.gov/dhss/dph/ss/vitalstats.html


Florida Statewide registration of deaths in Florida began in 1899, with full compliance
achieved by 1917. Death certificates are available through the Bureau of Vital
Statistics.

Georgia Before 1919, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Some cities began
recording deaths earlier, such as Atlanta (beginning in 1896), Macon (beginning in
1882), and Savannah (beginning in 1803). Statewide registration of deaths in
Georgia began in January 1919. These records are available through the Georgia
Department of Public Health.

Hawaii Hawaii death records exist as early as 1849. Prior to 1896, it was the responsibility of
the Board of Education to record deaths, after which the Board of Health became the
custodian of the records. A certified copy of a death certificate is issued only to an
applicant who has a direct and tangible interest in the record.  Available through the
State of Hawaii, Department of Health.

Idaho Idaho began requiring registration of deaths by the county recorders in 1907 and by
1911 registration was required directly to the state. The death certificates from 1907
to July 1911 are kept in the county records. Some counties may have records prior to
1907. Death records 1907 and later are available through the Idaho Department of
Health & Welfare.

Illinois Most Illinois counties did not begin recording deaths until 1877. Death records prior
to 1916 were recorded only by county clerks, after which time the State of Illinois
began recording deaths. Illinois death records are not public records and are only
available to those who have a personal or property right interest. The records are
available through the Illinois Department of Public Health.

Indiana Death records were recorded by the county health office beginning in 1882, where
they remained before mandatory recording with the state board of health began in
January 1900. The Indiana State Department of Health Division of Vital Records
maintains these death records.

Iowa No death records were recorded by governmental agencies prior to 1880. Statewide
registration of deaths at both the county and state levels began July 1, 1880, with full
compliance achieved by 1917. Death records are available through the Iowa
Department of Public Health, Bureau of Vital Statistics.

Kansas Before 1911, no deaths were recorded by the state. Between 1885 and 1911 a few
deaths were recorded at the county or city clerk's offices in register volumes. Not all
of these registers have survived. The State of Kansas started keeping official records
of deaths on July 1, 1911. Those records are available through the KDHE Office of
Vital Statistics.

Kentucky In 1852, counties were required to record deaths; however, those records are
incomplete. Statewide registration of deaths began in 1911, with full compliance
achieved by 1917. The Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services, Office of
Vital Statistics has death records from 1911 to present.
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http://www.floridahealth.gov/certificates/certificates/death/index.html
http://www.floridahealth.gov/certificates/certificates/death/index.html
https://dph.georgia.gov/ways-request-vital-record/death
https://dph.georgia.gov/ways-request-vital-record/death
https://health.hawaii.gov/vitalrecords/death-certificates/
https://healthandwelfare.idaho.gov/services-programs/birth-marriage-death-records
https://healthandwelfare.idaho.gov/services-programs/birth-marriage-death-records
https://dph.illinois.gov/topics-services/birth-death-other-records/death-records
https://www.in.gov/isdh/26754.htm
https://idph.iowa.gov/health-statistics/vital-records
https://idph.iowa.gov/health-statistics/vital-records
https://www.kdheks.gov/vital/
https://www.kdheks.gov/vital/
https://chfs.ky.gov/agencies/dph/dehp/vsb/Pages/death-certificates.aspx
https://chfs.ky.gov/agencies/dph/dehp/vsb/Pages/death-certificates.aspx


Louisiana Before 1911, some deaths were recorded by parishes, such as Orleans Parish
(beginning in 1804) and Jefferson Parish (beginning in 1850). Parishes have copies
of these records. Statewide registration of deaths began in 1911 in Louisiana. The
Louisiana Secretary of State issues certified copies of death certificates for deaths
between 1911-1970. For death certificates issued after 1970, contact the Louisiana
Department of Health.

Maine Before 1892, death records were kept by individual town clerks or selectmen.
Although some towns have existed since the 1650s, most records date from about
1700. Some of these older records have been indexed. Statewide registration of
deaths began in 1892. Records from 1892 to present are available through the Maine
Division of Public Health Systems.

Maryland Some deaths were recorded in colonial Maryland, but not many survived or were ever
recorded. In 1865, some counties began death registrations. In 1875 Baltimore City
began recording deaths. In 1898, all counties in Maryland began recording deaths,
although greater compliance did not happen until after 1914. The Maryland State
Archives has death records from 1875 (Baltimore City) and 1898 (Maryland Counties)
to 2010. For death records after 2010, contact the Maryland Division of Vital Records.

Massachusetts Massachusetts’ towns have been recording deaths since the 1600s. Massachusetts
was the first state to initiate statewide registration of vital records beginning in 1841.
However, Boston did not start reporting their vital statistics to the state until about
1850. The Registry of Vital Records and Statistics issues copies of death records
from 1926 to the present.

Michigan Before 1867, deaths were not recorded formally by the county or state. However,
approximately 10,000 deaths between 1800 and 1867 are indexed and available at
FamilySearch.org. Death records for each county (with copies sent to the state)
began no later than January 1867, although registration was not enforced. A 1905
law included stricter requirements, and was generally complied with by 1915. There
are no restrictions on death records for Michigan. The records are available through
the Michigan Department of Health & Human Services.

Minnesota Before 1870, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Statewide registration
of deaths began in 1908, with general compliance in 1910. Death certificates from
1908-2001 and death cards from 1904-1907 are available online through the
Minnesota People Records Search.

Mississippi Before 1879, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Statewide registration
of deaths began in 1912 in Mississippi. Counties have copies of these records.
Records are available through the Mississippi Department of Health.

Missouri Before 1883, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Records were kept by
two major cities, St. Louis began in 1850 and Kansas City began in 1874. In 1883,
Missouri law required counties to record deaths, although records are incomplete.
The practice continued for 10 years and stopped in 1893. Deaths were not recorded
for most places in Missouri between 1893 and 1910. Statewide registration of deaths
began on Jan. 1, 1910. Missouri death certificates from 1910 through  1970, are
available online through the Missouri Secretary of State. Missouri death certificates
are closed for 50 years before they are transferred to the state archives.
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https://www.sos.la.gov/HistoricalResources/ResearchHistoricalRecords/LocateHistoricalRecords/Pages/LouisianaDeathRecords.aspx
https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/subhome/21
https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/subhome/21
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/public-health-systems/data-research/vital-records/order/index.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/public-health-systems/data-research/vital-records/order/index.shtml
http://guide.msa.maryland.gov/pages/viewer.aspx?page=death
http://guide.msa.maryland.gov/pages/viewer.aspx?page=death
https://health.maryland.gov/vsa/Pages/Death.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/registry-of-vital-records-and-statistics
https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/0,5885,7-339-71551_4645---,00.html
https://www.mnhs.org/people/deathrecords
https://msdh.ms.gov/msdhsite/_static/31,0,109,809.html
https://s1.sos.mo.gov/records/Archives/ArchivesMvc/DeathCertificates/


Montana Prior to 1895 there were no legal requirements for keeping death records. At that
time, registration of deaths was the responsibility of clergymen, coroners, physicians,
sextons, and undertakers. In 1895, a law was passed requiring all physicians to keep
a register of all deaths. All existing pre-1907 death records are filed with the county
clerk in the county where the person died. Registration of deaths on the state level
began in 1907; and by 1910 compliance reached about 90 percent. It was not until
about 1915 that registration of deaths became reasonably complete. State death
certificates are available through the Montana DPHHS.

Nebraska Statewide registration of death records did not begin until late 1904, and compliance
was not complete for several years. Some earlier death records were kept by city
health departments. Omaha has death records from 1873 and Lincoln from 1889.
Nebraska death certificates are available through the Nebraska Department of Health
and Human Services.

Nevada Before 1887, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Some counties have
death records that start in 1887. For deaths prior to 1911, records are usually held in
the county Recorder’s office where the death occurred. Statewide registration of
deaths began July 1, 1911. The Office of Vital Records is the legal custodian of death
certificates filed from July 1, 1911, to the present.

New
Hampshire

Records of deaths occurring in each New Hampshire town or city have been kept by
town clerks since the early 1600s. Statewide registration began in 1866. Total
compliance with the law was not accomplished until the 1880s, and even then the
practice was not uniform. Total compliance began in 1905 with the establishment of
the Bureau of Vital Records. In 2003, the legislature clarified the state’s right-to-know
law with regard to access to state databases, including vital records such as death
certificates. The data is now searchable online through the New Hampshire Vital
Records Information Network Web Query site, but has been scrubbed of any
personal identifying information in accordance with the state law.

New Jersey Statewide registration of deaths began in 1848; however, many pre-1910 records
have not survived. Records before 1911 are kept at the State Archives. From 1912 to
present, the records are kept at the New Jersey Department of Health’s Office of Vital
Statistics.

New Mexico New Mexico did not keep death records before 1906; it did not become a state until
1912. A few cities and counties started keeping death records in 1906. County
registration of deaths was required in 1907 and statewide registration began in 1920.
New Mexico death certificates are restricted access records. State law restricts
access to the deceased registrant’s immediate family members or those who
represent tangible proof of legal interest in the requested record. Death certificates
become public records after 50 years following the date of death. These records are
available through the NMDOH.

New York Before 1847, no deaths were recorded. New York State briefly kept death records
from 1847 to about 1850, and started recording deaths again in June 1880. Copies of
records can be obtained from either the village, town, or city of death or by contacting
the state archives. The State of New York’s Vital Records has death records since
1881 for all of New York, except New York City (the boroughs of Manhattan, Kings,
Queens, Bronx, and Richmond). New York City records are available from the local
Registrar of Vital Statistics.
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https://dphhs.mt.gov/vitalrecords
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Pages/vital-records.aspx
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Pages/vital-records.aspx
https://dpbh.nv.gov/Programs/BirthDeath/Birth_and_Death_Vital_Records_-_Home/
https://nhvrinweb.sos.nh.gov/
https://nhvrinweb.sos.nh.gov/
https://www.state.nj.us/health/vital/
https://www.state.nj.us/health/vital/
https://www.nmhealth.org/about/erd/bvrhs/vrp/death/
https://www.health.ny.gov/vital_records/death.htm


North Carolina Before 1913, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Statewide registration
of deaths began in 1913, with general compliance by 1917. North Carolina Vital
Records, in partnership with county registers of deeds offices, local health
departments, and birthing facilities in the state are now responsible for recording
deaths.

North Dakota In 1893 a state law was enacted requiring registration of deaths. This law was
repealed in 1895 and then reenacted in 1899. When the State Department of Vital
Records was formed in 1923, all prior records kept by the counties were to be sent to
the state. Death records from 1893 to present can be obtained from the North Dakota
Division of Vital Records and from the county where the death occurred.

Ohio A law was enacted in 1856-57 requiring registration of deaths, but it was mostly
ignored. A new law was passed in 1867 requiring registration, but the current record
keeping system was not in place until 1908. Each county's probate court was
responsible for recording the death as a single line entry in a ledger book from 1867 to
Dec. 19, 1908. Deaths that occurred on Dec. 20, 1908, to the present are recorded by
local vital statistics offices and the Ohio Department of Health in a certificate format.
The Ohio State Archives holds Ohio Department of Health death certificates from Dec.
20, 1908, through 1963. They also hold Ohio stillborn Death Certificates from Dec. 20,
1908, through 1935 and 1942 through 1953, as well as Columbus Death Certificates
from 1904 through 1908. The Ohio Bureau of Vital Statistics maintains death records
from 1964 to present.

Oklahoma Most of the counties in Oklahoma did not start recording deaths until after statehood
in 1907. The few earlier records are included in records of the Chickasaw Nation,
Creek Nation, and Cherokee Outlet. Statewide registration of deaths began in
Oklahoma in 1908, and was generally complied with by 1930. State death records are
available through the Oklahoma State Department of Health, Vital Records Service.

Oregon The earliest death record in Oregon was in 1862. Statewide registration of deaths
began in July 1903. There are limited records prior to this time at the county level. The
Oregon State Archives has historic death records. Death certificates have a 50-year
access restriction.

Pennsylvania Prior to 1906, Pennsylvania deaths were recorded only sporadically by the counties
and some cities, such as Philadelphia and Pittsburgh. On Jan. 1, 1906, the newly
established Pennsylvania Department of Health officially began to issue death
certificates. For certified copies of death certificates from 1906 to present, contact the
Division of Vital Records.

Rhode Island Early death records, dating back to 1636, were kept by the towns. In 1700 the laws
concerning vital records registration were made more specific; and records kept after
that time are more complete. Statewide registration of deaths began in 1853, and was
generally complied with by the 1900s. Death certificates are available through the
State of Rhode Island, Department of Health.

South Carolina Before 1915, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. The cities of
Charleston, Georgetown, Spartanburg, and Union City did keep some records.
Statewide registration of deaths began in 1915. Death certificates are available
through the dhec.
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https://vitalrecords.nc.gov/
https://vitalrecords.nc.gov/
https://www.health.nd.gov/vital
https://www.health.nd.gov/vital
https://ohiohistory.libguides.com/vital/death#s-lg-box-15809069
https://odh.ohio.gov/wps/portal/gov/odh/know-our-programs/vital-statistics/vital-statistics
https://oklahoma.gov/health/birth-and-death-certificates.html
https://sos.oregon.gov/archives/Pages/records/aids-vitalrecords.aspx
https://www.health.pa.gov/topics/certificates/Pages/Vital%20Records.aspx
https://health.ri.gov/records/
https://scdhec.gov/vital-records/death-certificates


South Dakota There were a few counties that recorded deaths prior to 1905, it is not known how
many of those records survived. There are a few earlier death records for Native
Americans held among the Bureau of Indian Affairs’ records. Statewide recording of
deaths began in 1905. South Dakota death records for deaths occurring from 1905 to
present are available through the South Dakota Department of Health.

Tennessee Tennessee did not begin keeping records statewide until 1908. Larger cities in
Tennessee did keep earlier death records: Nashville (beginning in 1874); Knoxville
(beginning in 1881); Chattanooga (beginning in 1872); and Memphis (beginning in
1848). The Tennessee State Library and Archives has statewide death records for the
years 1908-1912 and 1914-1970. (No death records were recorded at the state level
during 1913). Nashville, Knoxville, Chattanooga, and Memphis did record deaths in
1913.  For death records from 1971 to the present, contact the Tennessee
Department of Health, Office of Vital Records.

Texas Some counties began recording deaths in 1903, but statewide registration did not
start until 1908. Death records are accessible through county clerks or through the
Texas Department of State Health Services’ Vital Statistics.

Utah No governmental agencies were required to record deaths prior to 1898. Although not
required, some cities and counties (Salt Lake City, Logan City, Beaver County,
Ogden) did register deaths prior to 1898. County clerks became responsible for
recording deaths beginning in 1898. In late 1904, the Utah Department of Health
assumed responsibility for creating death certificates for all individuals who died in the
state. Death records from 1904 to present are available from the Office of Vital
Records and Statistics.

Vermont Since 1760, when the first communities were established in Vermont, town clerks
have been responsible for recording deaths. This practice continues today. Statewide
registration of deaths began in 1857, and was generally complied with by 1919.
Copies of vital records from 1760 to 2008 are maintained by the Vermont Department
of Health. They are available online through FamilySearch, Ancestry.com, and
MyVermont.gov. There are no restrictions on public access to Vermont vital records.

Virginia Prior to 1853, no deaths were recorded by the counties or state. Some counties have
death records between 1853 and 1912. Statewide registration of deaths began in
June 1912. Death certificates are available from the VDH, Office of Vital Records.
Death records are public information 25 years after the death.

Washington Washington was granted statehood in 1889. In 1891, Washington counties were
required to keep vital records. Washington death records before July 1, 1907, are held
by the county auditor. Washington State assumed responsibility for statewide death
registration on July 1, 1907. These records are held by the Washington State
Department of Health. The Washington State Library does NOT have any vital
records certificates in its collection.
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https://doh.sd.gov/records/
https://www.tn.gov/health/health-program-areas/vital-records.html
https://www.tn.gov/health/health-program-areas/vital-records.html
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/vs/death/
https://archives.utah.gov/research/guides/death.htm
https://archives.utah.gov/research/guides/death.htm
https://www.familysearch.org/search/
https://www.ancestry.com/search/collections/4661/
https://secure.vermont.gov/myvermont/
https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/vital-records/
https://www.doh.wa.gov/LicensesPermitsandCertificates/VitalRecords
https://www.doh.wa.gov/LicensesPermitsandCertificates/VitalRecords


West Virginia In 1863, West Virginia was created from the state of Virginia. Statewide registration of
deaths began in 1917 in West Virginia, and the law was generally complied with by
1925. Death certificates are available through the West Virginia Department of Health
& Human Resources.

Wisconsin Some counties in Wisconsin recorded deaths prior to 1907; however, it was a
voluntary process performed inconsistently. Statewide registration of deaths began in
1907, and the law was generally complied with by 1908. Death records are available
from the Wisconsin Department of Health Services, Vital Records Service.

Wyoming State law required the recording of death certificates in 1909. Death certificates are
available through Wyoming Department of Health, Vital Statistics Services.
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https://www.wvdhhr.org/bph/hsc/vital/birthcert.asp
https://www.wvdhhr.org/bph/hsc/vital/birthcert.asp
https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/vitalrecords/index.htm
https://health.wyo.gov/admin/vitalstatistics/vital-record/deathrequest/

